PLANNING COMMISSION

Willows
Planning Commission TR liccthak

Jose Hansen, Commissioner
Candis Woods, Commissioner

R eg u | a r M e et i n g Robert Griffith, Commissioner

CITY PLANNER
Karen Mantele

July 18,2018
Willows City Hall S e Ehom

201 North Lassen Street 7:00 p.m.
Willows, CA 95988
(530) 934-7041

1. CALLTO ORDER -7:00 p.m.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL

4. AGENDA REVIEW (Requested Changes by Commissioners or Staff?)

5. PUBLIC COMMENT

Members of the public wishing to address the Commission on any item(s) not on the agenda may do so at this time when recognized by the Chair;
however, no formal action will be taken unless a majority consensus of the Commission directs staff to place the item on a future agenda. Public is
advised to limit discussion to one presentation per individual. While not required, please state your name and address for the record. (Oral
communications will be limited to three minutes)

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Minutes of Planning Commission meeting(s) held on June 20, 2018.

7. NEW BUSINESS

a) Advisory Request for a possible establishment of a Child Care Facility on parcel at 444 S. Butte Street/APN.
002-291-001/General Commercial Zoning District

b) Review and Consideration of Draft R-1 (Single Family Dwelling) Design Guidelines

Comments from the public are welcome. The Chair will allow an opportunity for comments related to Public Hearings and each action item on the
agenda. Please limit comments to three minutes per topic, and one comment per person per topic. Once comments conclude, please allow the
Commission the opportunity to continue its consideration of the item without interruption.

8. COMMISSION COMMENTARY
9. ADJOURNMENT

CERTIFICATION: Pursuant to Government Code § 54954.2 (a), the agenda for this meeting was properly posted on or before July 13,
2018.

A complete agenda packet, including staff reports and back-up information, is available for public inspection during normal work hours at City Hall or the Willows
Public Library at 201 North Lassen Street in Willows or on the City’s website at www.cityofwillows.org.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Willows will make available to members of the public any special assistance necessary to participate
in this meeting. The public should contact the City Clerk’s office 934-7041 to make such a request. Notification 72 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to

make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting.

The City of Willows is an Equal Opportunity Provider

Pagelof1
Planning Commission



MINUTES OF THE WILLOWS PLANNING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING HELD JUNE 20, 2018

1. Callto Order: 7:00 p.m.
2. Pledge of Allegiance: City Council Member Williams led the pledge of allegiance.
3. Roll Call: Karen Mantele, Planner; Maria Ehorn, Minute Clerk.

Commissioners:
PRESENT: White, Griffith, Michael, Hansen
ABSENT: Woods

4. Agenda Review: Chair White asked if there were any changes to the agenda by staff or Commissioners. Staff and
Commission had no changes to the agenda.

5. Public Comment: Chair White introduced the item. No public comments were made.

6. Approval of Minutes: It was moved by Vice Chair Michael and seconded by Commissioner Griffith approve the
minutes of May 23, 2018 as amended.

The motion passed unanimously 4/0 by the following voice vote:
AYES: White, Griffith, Michael, Hansen

NOES:

ABSENT: Woods

ABSTENTION:

7. NEW BUSINESS/PUBLIC HEARING(S):

a. Zoning Text Amendments (File# ZTA-18-01) Applicant: City of Willows
City initiative to modify the text of the Municipal Code: Sections 18.60.030; 18.65.070; & 9.20.070(1)

Chair White introduced the item. Ms. Mantele presented the staff report.
Chair White opened the public hearing. No comments were made. Chair White then closed the public hearing.
Motion: Commissioner Griffith/Second: Commissioner Michael

It was moved by Commissioner Griffith and seconded by Commissioner Michael to approve the next resolution in
line entitled, a resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Willows recommending the City Council approve
zoning text amendments to the Municipal Code/Zoning Ordinance regarding zoning districts where retail cannabis
use is allowed as presented on Exhibit A with other text remaining unchanged.

The motion passed unanimously 4/0 by the following voice vote:
AYES: White, Griffith, Michael, Hansen

NOES:

ABSENT: Woods

ABSTENTION:

b. Use Permit (File# UP-18-03) Applicant/Owner: Ana Camacho/Aida Corpuz

610 S. Tehama Street/Assessors Parcel Number 002-312-002/ CG General Commercial) zone/General Commercial
Land Use Designation/Use Permit to allow establishment of a bar and cocktail lounge business within an existing
commercial building
Chair White introduced the item. Ms. Mantele presented the staff report. Staff read a letter into the record from a
neighbor regarding a complaint of loud noise coming from the business. The Commission had brief discussion and a
few questions for staff. Ms. Mantele stated the Sheriff’s office reported several complaints since the end of 2017

E=——o—————————E L= e a et B sE S S S SS ]
WILLOWS PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES — JUNE 20, 2018 1



regarding loud noise and patrons not wanting to leave. Staff also gave a brief history of the use and applications for
projects at this location.

Chair White opened the public hearing. Mark Ponciano, spoke regarding the loud noise. The applicant, Ana
Comacho, spoke to the Commission and gave a brief narrative regarding what her plans are for opening the
restaurant and addressing the noise issue.

Chair White closed the public hearing.

There was a discussion among the Commission and staff and the consensus of the commission was to add a
Conditions of Approval (COA) reiterating the Use Permit will be granted with a six (6) month review.

Motion: Commissioner Michael/Second: Commissioner Hansen.

Motion to approve the next resolution in line entitled, a Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of
Willows approving a six (6) month Use Permit (File #UP-18-03) for Ana Camacho to establish a bar and cocktail
lounge business within an existing commercial building for property located at 610 S. Tehama Street, assessor’s
parcel 002-312-002.

The motion passed unanimously 4/0 by the following voice vote:

AYES: White, Griffith, Michael, Hansen

NOES:

ABSENT: Woods

ABSTENTION:

Ms. Mantele reminded the applicant that there is a ten (10) day appeal period following the Planning Commission
decision on the use permit.

8. COMMISSION COMMENTARY:
a. Commissioners gave reports on activities and various meetings they attended.

b. Ms. Mantele stated the next meeting will be July 18, 2018. The single-family design guidelines draft should be
ready to look at and possibly an advisory request at the next meeting. Staff also reported that the Economic
Development Agency (EDA) infrastructure project is going out to bid this month. Staff gave an update on
ongoing projects.

9. ADJOURNMENT: 7:55 p.m.

PEGGY WHITE — Chair

Maria Ehorn — Minute Clerk

WILLOWS PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES - JUNE 20, 2018 2



Item # 7a

Planning Commission Agenda Report: July 18, 2018
Advisory Request Child Care Facility Business

Subject Property Location: 444 S. Butte Street, Willows, CA
Parcel No: 002-291-001

Zoning: CG (General Commercial)

General Plan General Commercial

Proposal:

Deanna Hamilton has contacted Planning Staff to find out if establishing a Child Care Facility at the
subject property is allowed. Her proposal is to establish a Child Care Facility with a capacity of 30-60
children. The 22,651 square foot parcel has an existing 1,795 square foot building located on it that has
been used as a church in the past (Pentecostal Church). Her intention is to bring the building up to code
where needed. The facility will provide care for full age range of children including infants, toddlers, pre-
school aged children and after school care. Her intention is to operate year round as there is a growing
need in the community for child care. There would be a need for more employees in order to operate the
business. Ms. Hamilton includes in her proposal the possibility of adding a small portable building if
needed to meet the California State requirements of square footage for the size of facility intended.

Zoning

The project site is zoned General Commercial, which purpose is intended to be applied in areas where
commercial facilities are necessary for public service and convenience. The Municipal Code references
child care facilities within its Density Bonus code section. This project is not associated with a housing
development therefore this section of the code is not applicable to this proposal.

Under Definitions Section 18.24.040, “Day Care” is defined as meaning the care, supervision, or
guidance of a child or group of children unaccompanied by their parent for a period of less than 24 hours
per day. In general, the term “Day Care Center” has the same meaning as in Health and Safety Code
Section 1596.76, which states that “Day care center means any child day care facility other than a family
day care home, and includes infant centers, preschools, extended day care facilities, and schoolage child
care centers”. The City’s zoning code does not address or call out the use of a Child Day Care Facility in
the CG zone. The term day care is referenced in the R-1 and R-2 zoning districts, which allow for private
and religious schools, nursey schools and family day care centers providing services to more than 12
children.

Code Section 18.60.030(9) (Uses permitted with a conditional use permit) which allows “Other
commercial uses in the opinion of the planning commission which are of similar nature to those uses
listed above” is an option for the Commission to consider. Because of the lack of clarity in the Municipal
Code regarding whether a Child Care Facility would be allowed within the General Commercial district,
the Planning Commission is being asked for direction.

In reviewing the State of California Child Care Licensing Program website it states that Child Care
Centers are usually located in a commercial building and Family Child Care Homes are in a licensee’s
home. This proposal is to establish a commercial Child Care Facility within a commercial building. It
should be noted that this property/parcel is located in a Special Flood Hazard Zone and any improvements
are subject to the Flood regulations of the City code. Ms Hamilton was made aware of this requirement.

Page 1 of 6 Child Care Facility Advisory Requept
July 18, 2018 Planning Commission Agenda



General Plan
The General Plan Land Use designation for this parcel is General Commercial which under 6.2 of the

Land Use Element allows for general retail businesses and service related businesses.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Provide direction to Staff after Commission discussion and determination of the proposal.

Attachments:
1. Letter from Ms Hamilton
2. CG (General Commercial) zoning district excerpt
3. APN map

Submitted by: o

QA,\,C/LA L -
Karen Mantele
Principal Planner

Page 2 of 6 Child Care Facility Advisory Requéat
July 18, 2018 Planning Commission Agenda



Attachment 1
Applicant Letter

une 26, 2018

I }eanta Hamilton
439 Cresteood Way
Willows, CA 95538

Kiren Mantele

Planuting Consubtant, Lity of ¥Willows:
201 Marth Lassen Street

Willows, (A GGONR

Dewr Karen Mantele,

Tumt writieyg Lhis letaer af L inform yaan ol nay inteetiom o start a child care facility ar 444 South Botte Street,
Willows, CA. T plan om purchasing the huildivg froie the Northera Chapte: of the Pantecostal Cluech, byinging
itup to code, and possibly addiag a small sortable huilding if necdod to mect the California Stare cequirements
ab squecte fuotage Tur my feilily.

T have been m che childeare husiness for apprext mately 2 yoaes, and Loontinue co love whae [ do, After Amishiog
twigh scharn] in 1890 a1 1all River e gk, | altended Botee Callege in Cheovills, CA. There T egenad twn Asso-
clales Degrres, one in the Prrchalony of Sucial and Hehivaoea! Studies, and the atherin Liberl $tudies. after
cumplelng Dudle, T transfersed to CSL., Chiza and graduascd in 2002 with a Baghelors Degree in Compmieica-
ton with an opiinn in Graahic Avls @il cre claas pending. Shony after graduating §owas hived hy Iri-Canntiez
Mewspaper i Willows as a Gruphic Desigrer. Wil 6 weeks T was privmated to mnanager, and | succeasfully
monaged the enlire aeepbacs deparlnent. T held Whis position for 5 yeavs. in 20184 | had my first chila. Jack. ‘The
extensive hours at the newapaper keptme frum [ cuaile ahil. snd sfter same cmsideraiior, incloding discuss-
ing the need bor davcare providess in Lae acer wilh Jaeks daycare prvidor anc my hushavc, | decided ta leave
thye newspaper and slarl 1oy own small daycare frem hame.

Alter -l'IlJ'.II'I;.l'.E my srall dayz'aré for app:"uxil.n-nh:iy 3 }'fm.m. ! kvew thar this wwas m}r'cnreer: a0 £ decided ra ex
pand my business to 4 large at-home Jdawarg and hirsd mey fiest ecplove<, 1liave loved every minule of il! Az the
years have progressed | have come 1o 1ealize that the aeed 52 child cave i Wiklows s preal. Thave an endless
wait-list, and | hawve fomd that the ratia of ¢hildres o childete pooviders i Willows is ineullicienl.

My proprmul (or 443 5. Butte Strect i tobecomne @ child cave center with a mpacite of 20 60 children, 1will ke
providing care tor Lke (ull age range of children including infants, toddlees, preschonl aged childran, and after
school care, T plan oo operating vear round and puowing a saf, fn and educational place far childeen, [will also
lee creacing several jull oppoeicaitics for Willines as | will need svescnel teachers and assistate, [would also
like: to work wich the Willows High School RO pragram o a-ovide ligh sshool sludents whe ate intecesled ina
caveet pulh icwolving children the appnrhunity to come in and get some axperience by helping afte: school wila
tuknting and nxsigting chi'cren with peajacts.

‘Ihank v for vaur consideration, 1am Jouxing lorwaxl b pous cespuase.

Best Wegards,

Lx:anna Hamilton

Page 3 of 6 Child Care Facility Advisory Reque3t
July 18, 2018 Planning Commission Agenda



ATTACHMENT 2

General Commercial District

Chapter Y460 CG GLNLRAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICL

Chapter 18.60
CG GENERAL COMMERC AL DISTRICT

Sectang:
18.80.010 ~u'posa
18 60,020  Zermited uaes
1860.030  Jsas pormilted waty & conodional vsé perniz.
18.50.040 Othaer regulabons.

18.60.010 Purpose,

The general cornmercial or GG vistr.cl is intended to be apolied in anzas whers commaenrc al facilitiss
are neceaeary far public eervice 8+ sanvenience. [0ad. 733-17 § 1, *1-t4-°7; Ond. YO1-11 § 1, 7-12-
1. Dre. B32-91 § 18.01, 10-22-91).

e e B
The lolleving uges 2nd slrucle ies e perr-ikeu in she S cislrcs,
{1} Ueas permited in tha2 CC disiric: 85 sat foh in WC 18.a5.02C,
(2) Pef shope and velerinacian cffices.

13y Martusries and funeral parlars.

(4} Privere schools and cusiness colenes

15} Camime cial parking 1E1S and parking gafanes.

(5) Automablia sarvics sialons.

| 7) Residencas, boardinghousee, tramiitional and supporlive housing, 8~d group dwellings providad
1hat esidential unics and quarers cuipy anly the secand slory o hgher af slruclues whese frst

st igs ZoniAin nenresic entis! veas, =4har permitted or permitted 9 condidional wea permite ir the CG
district, except as autanrized hy “WMEC 1R 110,090%6)

{8) Emangancy shelters iup to S bedsl. s blect to daveltomend and rranagerial standards par WMC
18119111 7Qed. 73317 § 1. 111417, Ol 715-15 § 1 6-5-7 9. Ond. 7111 §1, 7-12-11. Dnd. 632-
&1 § 16.02, 10-22-31].

18.60.430 Usaes permitted with a conditlonal uge permit

The felicaing uass and el cturea mey be pemiitted ir the CG d strict anty if 3 sonditicral uee permit
hag s Dean sacL rud.

(1) All uaes penn fted in any residentisal zones.

{2y Boardinghouses, group dwellings, and charshes

Page 4 of 6 Child Care Facility Advisory Requegt
July 18, 2018 Planning Commission Agenda



Chapler 1860 UG GENERAL COMMIIRCIAT. DISTRICT

(4} Harz and cacktall lounges.

{4] Adult businessas.

{5 Major aulomobile and cqu omant rapair sarvice atationa,

(&1 Autamobile and exqu pmert sales and sarvice including used car Icts.
(7} Whaolesake disliibulivn uses ane warehcas2s.

3y Hotels, Tobals. hospitals, saritaniun's, and resl homes

{9) Cither cemTarcial uses in the aninon of the plarairg ¢oumission which ara of gimilar nature to
those vso6 lisled alave

("D) Emergency shalters. 50 k2ds of More. subjact to develcp~ant and managenal standards per
WG 18,170,117 [Ord. 7233-17 5 1, 111417 Opd, 7011 § 1. 7-12-11; Ordl. 532-9° § 16.03, 10-22-
atj.

LA A Ll LU
1] Comime-Sial Uscs.
{a) Minir um lct ares: 5,000 zquare fes!
(k) Minimum Yard Reguiremenis.
(i Fron=: none
(ii] Side: hana

{ii) Rear 12 Tel whare sceessilie from atrest or slley far loading ourposes. Building may
project owar raa- yard areq, paviding 14 fae! vlew vedical distance frem ground lsvel is
maintained Buikdiry codwe 3 rd other regu latic~s shall appty.

(c} Wlaomuim building heighl. 55 feet. Additiona heighl may bie pormittad if a use parmit ic
sucurad in esch caae

fd: Loacing Space Phvale off-shiasl space for the hand ing of al mazcriols and squipman:.

(2} Mirimurm Perking. Of-gtreet parking shall be proviced in ar 2mouct i~ agoandance with the
regulations of Ghapder 18,120 WhC.

{21 Residential Uses. Min‘rum lat ares, fran:. $ice and roar selbacks. meximu r buiding height,
maxiTum at covarage and paiking requraments far rea denfial taas orim ftee with & usa permit skall
he subject 1o tho ragulatiana of ik2 residential 2one(g) for which the use is cansiclaned a principally
pemited use, \Ore. 73317 § 1, 11-13-17; Ond. 701-11 51, 7-12-11, Ord. 632-81 § 15.04, 10-22-31]

Page 5 of 6 Child Care Facility Advisory Request
July 18, 2018 Planning Commission Agenda



ATTACHMENT 3
APN MAP

-3

o0 H 2
- '_-"J

{';.Il g —

JZODL

TGA

L1

" ! Y- | —
& E
— ak | pad |
2]
*
3@ M66 EMH T ,;_)
¥ =
JAAE 8 §,0.0 v 48 oweys | .|
_‘ I___ i t H 1 =
S BEE ; o 1]
8 | i % : -
- < = 4 ..'./I;'.L —i zl - - " - "3 L = I -
| SR ' ®
- : ] P ~ L]
e |f:.'i'-?;5‘n“_:3 ‘® @ @ ; g €3
) "2 ul* .
. Bl e 1} -’ ;
b ‘ =, o ' -»I. ‘v é“m m c
£
E % % 2|8 =
] E
: :EI L ; ; )
T: o g .’?‘;‘
13 ¥ &E
T 1 - HOH
Page 6 of 6 Child Care Facility Advisory Requét

July 18, 2018 Planning Commission Agenda



Item #7b.

Planning Commission Agenda Report: July 18, 2018
Subject: R-1 (Single Family) Design Guidelines

Background: In 2014 the City adopted a set of multi-family design guidelines for that sort of
development. The City’s Willows Municipal Code, Section 2.45 Architectural Design Review, spells out
the criteria for Design Review Approval; however is general in its development standards and not specific
to single family residential developments. Currently there are two districts in the City which have
specific Design Standards; Downtown Willows and the Entryway zone. Implementing guidelines that
will augment the other design guidelines but will be specific to single family developments is the goal.

This process, to establish single family design guidelines, began June 21, 2017, when the Commission
first began discussing Draft Design Guidelines for Single Family dwellings. These discussions continued
until the October 2017 meeting. Staff brought the revised guidelines to the Commission at the March
2018 meeting with direction to Staff to prepare a draft format for their review.

Attached are the draft guidelines that the Commission have agreed upon. Before taking any final

guidelines to the City Council for adoption, Staff is bringing the guidelines to the Commission for further
discussion and approval of format and content.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Review and discuss the draft R-1 guidelines and provide direction to Staff

Attachments:
1. Draft Single Family Design Guidelines

Submitted by:
'/Q/A_,\_,/IM

KarenMantele
Principal Planner

Page 1 of 1 Draft Single-Family Design Guidelines
July 18, 2018 Planning Commission Agenda



DRAFTS ONLY

SINGLE FAMILY GUIDELINES

2 OPTIONS REGARDING STYLE
FOR REVIEW



SINGLE FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL
DESIGN GUIDELINES




Table of Contents

INOLE/PUIPOSE: .......eeneeeiierieiererteteteasesteeaessee e s eesaesnessesssssasbesesesssrsessssssesasseaseassanssesasarssesassasssessessestessesbessasssasssnassonnssanens 1
ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN ...... iisiisiisessssosssisississsssssisnsssssssssisssncommssssonoieeiaiossossssiaesvsassoiisss e soadessnst svaessasisansaroneenn 1
Articulated Building Massing .... oo it siissssas s s sH v sss s ssssss53e o850 8544000 abnsaissassosasas snone 1
Building FACAAES v uvismusumsssssonistousavssssiaissiinasmasabsindsnsassasssiaisss siomsiissmaiisssmsibbedisssibisiniis sonssssiisabbe s eshasssesbssvisaisitbasonesesns 2
Building Materials and ColOr.......cususmmsssivsssmismsisssmanssissssivsiesisrvsassnsstsonsesssosissorsssieisnssssassisnsesaiassssasssssiassassvssionsersssene 2
ROOFS ... bbb s s bae et e s s s e st e A e A d s E 4 e b e R ek eE et s e 4 e st e A e b e st e aaraeAe s s nE e b e aanaeasaasseesensasarserseannsenes 2
RoOf Form and SIOpe ...ttt es s ssae e s sbsesasnens freebseeba ettt e et eenes 2
IVIATCTALS ... e Fo e s oy e e o AT P SR A A A AR T AR LSS A AP A AT Ao o8 1 0 3
DETAIL ELEMENTS ............... st eis s oiossisisiassssomsiomsiisseeuoia o st sass o ueas s ienssasamqsssnmsnssonsnnenngesessosses 3
Detail Elements Include:......... ccacisisciimsssriiiissomssissaivaiisssn s s siiss s io s s o i o ian s saises v siaiuiin sm s voves 4
GARAGES & DRIVEWAYS..... cccmaissoiosanivniessessssiieisislomssisssssisis s s s st iovs s issa o e sissssssadosonsssnsneseses 5
Maximum Width of DEIVEWAY .........ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiisiinissssnissste s sss s s sasarsessansss s esbssbasssssssssresassssssssstssssssssnnssossseseneenns 5
GATAGES.............oieininnnnesneseo oo s meS e st s S S RS S A A S PSR S 5
De-emphasis Of GATAGES.............cooooiiiiiii i ss s e sassre e s e st e st esa st asassaeseesesaesaesseseebesaseneesaensensens 5
GArage DIESIZIN..........o.oiii ettt ettt et st sesa e s e ae b e nn e s et s e na e s e aeR e ae et e s araeaeraeaerteReeaer s et erannes 5
Garage PIaceIEnt ................... uiiaisisioissiiirssmmsivinisoismnimns s s iass i is s 0ssos 004045 b bshosbssanassrasnosemsataysmsorepmyssems sesmssnsy 6
3 €ar GaAraBes s uisisiiaaii i oo o e s s 5 oo Re I H N s aA e AT SR A S s S e s eV T B s ee e teeiv 6
ACCESSORY STRUCTURES .csivuiiiisssuvuinssisseisssssssisiessssisidi s i oot inssiasass ivisvis e ssassss soosssssiodossssvnsisvnsssnssesh 6
SecONAArY UIILS.............. ... cwumesssssmimssonsosisioms s s s s eissass ki s s i s b sss b wads e edaasvinty 6
PreSErVINZ VIEWS ........unsorumsuviesssosonnssersesssnosessuoissesoos ssssessss s 5es o anss 1sssssosss o s s s s e s osiiassn 6
PLEVACY ..ottt st e e s b e b s et e ke sbssesasssbsasbesba e b e ex b e s A s e b e ams s bseRe e e Ae oAb oAb et e R e et b b e Rn e ne st e ensaranant 6
PLOTTING AND VARIABLE SETBACKS .......cooiiiieitiiiieiiiesieseessesssaessessssaessassssssssssssasssssssssessesssssessssssssassssassssssssasns 7
Lot OFIEILALION............cucnonnen i ionitinmossss st sssscsonssasts sssssses i bEAI 4444 S hemss o meraTPEe PSSP TS TR S SR T AT RS EARSR SRR OSSR TR0 7
COTREE LOLS........oovrnreeinnnnenilisisioissioniasibonionssssstsshonsbio s onsssas s ass s oA oA R ST Va S o Ve s ok a e s e aaaas 7
Varied Lot Widths................. . simmmi s s i g e is i Wavshss s sivesson v esianos s b e ssdiavvnsesavaniinss 7
PEDESTRIAN CONNECTIVITY .............cossseumisnainicassaaisiiismiibiiinasisieiiibeiisiioisiosssiosiesiisioisisiaso 7
PedeStrian WAY.........ooceoioeeenerieeeenerenun oo oo sisesmss s s o o e s i s b o s i s s s s 3 b s S s 8
Abutting Cul-de-sac BUIbS ...ttt saesa s s a s s s e s s e s esesaeaa b e e eraaensensnenas 8
VICW CHI-AE-SACS ...ttt s e e h e es e b s b s e e s e b e s e s s bbb e R e e s asasaes s eb et arssnsensnssns 8
Neighborhood Street DESIGIN...........c.co.ciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee s ese s st e saesas et s e ssessesessssesansassssssessssessesaanseassnssen 8
Traffic Calming Measures............ s s s i i i i s i sornimresssevivesossns doiasas sy smmmasmaras 8
Commercial/ Residential Interface .. ccausmisisivimeaiiiinssusssioiioismsseiisibabsos s iimasmatiaiin 9
Residential/ Park Interface........... oumssosonnsosimnionsams o o s s s e e o s s e e e shyaies 9
SPECIAL SITING CONDITIONS. . icisusasssssessssassusssninssissrsssissoinsinsoesisisnssnsssiasonsssessssiaomvsiossaasivmimaissssaiisisersoisionsss 9



Perimeter Edge Conditions ...t srasssesss s ssessasssssessssassssaesessassssasssessssasssassesnans 9
Color blockan g s i i e o i e A e oA ALy A a5 o o oo ep Yo R S TR ST AR SR SRS A A SRR 10
Mechanical Equipment.........................isamiisismisnmsiisnsimimaemsimmmamsniaaimmsamsimasanmwes 1 0

Energy EffICICICY .........cccovieerereeenmereonen diiiesiis s s i oo biis ooty isnisss i e vots Srvavivssinbo oW ionmesnisnssndisasidssions i vsiatons 10
LANDSCAPE ELEMENTS ..o it iisssdssaiissiesivaisssiaissssiss dinsisvisisssiesisasssisiss sissibamitsshonissinsmiiosivnstissssnsts 11
WWAILS & FOIMCES ...........couoriicrencrenarnense s ensosens s ssmssuossisassaasassinias sEFs s BRSNS S o s S s eSS s 11
SHFEEL TTEES ...ttt ettt e et rt e e st e e e e et e e e aesanesne s e er e sbaebae s sa e s e s s e st e s sseensesesssesansnesnennsantentessensasasrasenneeserese 11
EDergy COmSEIVALION .............cccoiiierieitiiesisietaraiestereesrsassssneasteseesassrtessassasassessassssasaesnssrssssessassssmsessenssesnesnesnsensassasesnens 12
PIant Palette............... oottt ee et st et e et v e e s s esas s s e et et e seessaarsneasesnsassaessenseesasnsersasensanseesnesseentensensseessens 12



SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL
DESIGN GUIDELINES

Note/Purpose:

These guidelines primarily address zoning districts to
include R-1 and R-2 which both allow for single family
dwellings. Parcels within the General Plan land use
designations of Estate Residential and Low Density
Residential are areas subject to these guidelines.

The overall layout of neighborhoods and subdivisions in
the City of Willows is intended to promote a varied yet
cohesive residential environment with a strong focus
upon the pedestrian and human-scale streetscapes.
Throughout the neighborhoods, the intermixing of
residential densities, lot sizes, and product types is
encouraged. The local street network should be designed
fo provide comnectivity within and between individual
neighborhoods and provide choices between routes.
Variety in street and residential block layouts is
encouraged

Design Review is intended to promote high-quality design
and well-built and maintained buildings, landscaping and
public amenities in order to further the relationship
between the appearance of buildings and structures,
property values and the taxable value of property in the

city.

Diversity in housing not only allows builders to
provide a greater spread of housing choice and
affordability for residents, but also allows for a
varied yet cohesive residential environment. Diversity
in housing types also helps to create variety in
neighborhood design, with a strong focus upon the
pedestrian and human-scale streetscapes.

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN

Regardless of its architectural style, the architecture of a
house is comprised of three basic components; the
building facades, roofs, and detail elements. Together,
when these components are designed appropriately, a
cohesive yet diverse residential neighborhood
environment will be realized.

Articulated Building Massing

Boxy two-story building forms that overwhelm the street
scene are discouraged. Rather the building mass should
be broken down into smaller elements, where feasible, to
provide visual interest and articulation to the
neighborhood street scene.




Building Facades

Variety in building forms provide diversity and visual
interest to the neighborhood street scene and can be used
to create a desirable human scale.

The following elements should be incorporated into the
design of residential structures: building wall planes,
particularly on the front elevation, should be staggered to
create interest along the street scene; projections and
recesses should be used to provide shadow and depth;
combinations of one and two-story forms should be used
to help to create variety in setback and overall building
form.

Building Materials and Color

® Building materials (including accent materials, roof
materials, and paint colors) are important elements to
the visual quality of homes and should be consistent
with the architectural style of the residence.

® All surface treatments or materials should be
designed to appear as an integral part of the design,
and not merely applied. All materials should wrap
columns, porches, or balconies in their entirety.

= Material changes should occur at inside corners or
other meaningful location. Materials applied to any
elevation should turn the outside corner of the
building a minimum of 3’ before terminating.

= The color palette should be selected with the design
objectives of avoiding monotony, providing a variety
of colorful schemes, and promoting visual diversity.

= Selected finish materials should be of durable
material and of high quality.

* No homes adjacent to each other or immediately
across the street from each other should have the same
color scheme or same body color.

ROOFS

Roof Form and Slope
Similar to building materials and color, roof form and
slope are also important design elements in creating a
well-developed street scene.
= Roof treatments should be consistent with the
architectural style of the dwelling.
® Variety of roof design and treatment is encouraged to
provide visual interest to the neighborhood roofscape
throughout the development, including the use of
gable, cross-gable, hip, or a combination of these roof
forms. DORMERS?
= Likewise, variety in roof lines is encouraged to avoid
a common roof line along neighborhood streets.
Rooflines of adjoining residences should vary ridge
heights, roof forms, and direction of gables.

BARNRED SALEMRED SALMON PUMPKIN . MARIGOLD
MUSTARD BAYBERRY TAVERN GREEN LEXINGTON |  SEA GREEN

FEDERALBLUE  SOLDIERBLUE SLATEBLUE PITCHBLACK DRIFTWOOD

CHOCOLATE BUTTERMILK  LIGHT CREAM SNOW WHITE | OYSTER WEITE

Gambrel Roof Iyl f

Mansard Roof Dormer Roof

Half-Hip Roof



= Repetitious gable ends framed side to side on rear
elevations are not permitted along perimeter edges of
residential neighborhoods, when visible from a public
space or street.

= Broken roof pitches extending over porches, patios or
other similar features are encouraged where
appropriate to the architectural style.

Materials

In order to avoid a monotonous roofscape appearance, a
variety of roof materials is encouraged throughout the
development.

® Roof materials should be compatible with the
architectural style of the residence and should have a
matte finish to minimize glare.

* Permitted Roof Materials: Clay or Concrete “S”
Tiles; Clay or Concrete Flat Tiles; Clay or Concrete
Shakes; Slate; Low profile S-tiles; Architectural
Grade Composition.

= Prohibited Material: Wood Shake; Rolled roofing
material.

» Fascia: may be either stucco, wood, or tile. If wood is
used, it should be stained or painted.

= Skylights are permitted but should be designed as an
integral part of the roof. White “bubble” skylights are
not permitted. Skylight framing material should be
bronze anodized or colored to match the adjacent roof
materials.

DETAIL ELEMENTS

= Entries: The entry of a residential dwelling should be
articulated as a focal point of the building’s front
elevation. Roof elements, columns, porticos, recesses
or projections, window or other architectural features
should be used to accentuate the entryway.

* Courtyards: Courtyards provide a transition from the
public space of the street to the entrance of the
dwelling. Courtyard walls, when provided, should be
finished to match the house. Stone, ceramic tiles,
steps, recesses, cut-outs, or wrought iron accents
appropriate to the architectural style of the residence
are encouraged.

= Porches: Porches not only provide pedestrian scale
elements to the building massing but also allow for an
area for residents to enjoy the outdoor climate and a
place converse with neighbors. When provided,
porches should be designed as an integral component
of the building’s architecture, with dimensions
significant to create a usable outdoor space. Porches
should have railings and be fully covered in one of the
following ways; roof element and tile matching the



residence; trellis structure, second floor balcony or
overhang.

®= Columns & Archways: The use of columns and
archways adds articulation to the character of the
residence and is encouraged where appropriate to the
architectural style. Columns and archways should be
scaled appropriately to provide a sense of strength and
support compatible with the architectural style of the
home.

= Trellis & Arbors: Trellises and arbors, when used,
should be designed to maintain their appearance
considering the climatic conditions of the area.

® Patio covers and balconies: The use of rear patio
covers and second story balconies provide an
excellent opportunity for the articulation of rear
facades, particularly along visible perimeter
conditions (i.e., public spaces or streets). Second
story balconies provide further visual interest to the
street scene by increasing the perceived front setback
of the second story. Patio covers and balconies should
be designed as an integral component of the
architecture. Columns used in conjunction with the
patio covers and balconies should convey a sense of
strength and support.

* Principal Window Treatment: At least one principal
window is required on front elevations. Principal
windows are defined as having one of the following
characteristics; Recessed window or a pop-out
surround; A bay window with projection and
detailing appropriate to the architectural style of the
residence; A enhanced sill with corresponding roof
element and corbels; An overhead trellis element or;
Decorative iron window grille projecting forward of
the wall plane.

Rear and side elevations that are visible from perimeter
conditions should have at least one principal window as
defined above. The use of shutters is an acceptable
principal window treatment on visible rear elevations
when used in conjunction with an enhanced sill or other
form of articulation. All other windows on the front
elevations and visible side and rear elevations should
feature trim surrounds, headers or sills. The minimum
reveal for trim elements is 1”. The style of windows
should be compatible with the architectural style of the
residence.

Detail Elements Include:

Shutters; exposed rafter ends or cross beams. Decorative
grill work, decorative stucco or clay pipe vents,
decorative ceramic tile/and or other similar features.
Exposed gutters and downspouts should be colored to




match or complement the surface to which they are
attached.

GARAGES & DRIVEWAYS

Maximum Width of Driveway

In order to limit the unappealing amount of hardscape in
front of a home, the use of contrasting materials, Tapered
driveway, or Landscape planter strips is encouraged.

Garages

Garages should be set back a minimum of 5 feet from the
primary front fagade of the residence. Garages are also
encouraged to be located further back toward the rear yard
area of a lot to accommodate a more traditional design.
Garages should be set back sufficiently enough so that
vehicles parked on driveways do not extend or block the
sidewalk or public right-of-way. = The minimum
recommended distance from the face of the garage to the
front property line is 20 feet.

De-emphasis of Garages

Residential garages should be positioned to de-emphasize
their visual impact on the street. This will allow the active,
visually interesting features of the house, to dominate the
streetscape. Garages may be sited in several ways;
Recessed Garage, Corner Lot with Side-street Entry
Garage, Forward Swing-In Garage, Split Garage, Alley-
Loaded Garage, Detached Garages, Garage Forward.

Garage Design

Attached or detached garages should be designed to de-
emphasize their architectural prominence. To achieve this
desired effect, these structures should incorporate the
following;

= Garage doors should vary with respect to windows
and/or color as appropriate to individual architectural
styles of the house.

* On conventional home plotting, in effort to buffer the
view impact of garages and garage doors from the
sidewalk or street, optional treatments such as a trellis
or porte-cochere are encouraged. A recessed garage
plan with a porte-cochere can create an additional
partially covered parking space, and also can serve as
an outdoor private space.

® Rear loaded homes are also encouraged. The
garages of these homes generally take access from
drive aisles and court streets, allowing more
architecture to front onto the neighborhood streets
and open spaces. When plotting rear loaded units,
since the garage side of the homes will only be visible
to the drive aisles, it is not necessary to recess the
garage doors.



Garage Placement

Residential garages should be positioned to de-emphasize
their visual impact on the street. This will allow the
visually interesting features of the house to dominate the
streetscape. All garage doors should be recessed a
minimum of 6 inches behind the garage wall plane.
Tandem parking in garages may be used to minimize
the number or width of garage doors.

3 Car Garages

When a 3-car front-facing garage is used, in addition to
standard garage requirements, at least one of the
following front-facing plan elements is required: A
minimum 6 foot deep by 10 foot wide porch on the front
elevation; an offset at single door of at least 2 feet from
the double door; a double and single garage door
separated by at least 1 foot of wall mass between doors
and the garages are located at least 5 feet behind the front
fagade of the dwelling’s living space.

*QOptional treatments such as a trellis or porte-cochere
that occur forward of the garage can be used to buffer
the view impact of garages and garage doors from the
sidewalk or street. For example, a recessed garage
plan with a porte-cochere can create an additional,
partially covered, parking space and also can serve as
an outdoor private space.

ACCESSORY STRUCTURES

Guest houses, detached garages, greenhouses, and other
similar accessory structures should be compatible in
design, materials, and color as the main residence. Such
structures should be visually related to the main residence
through the use of garden walls, or other landscape
elements.

Secondary Units

Secondary units (also referred to as ancillary or granny
units) help to increase affordability and diversity
throughout a neighborhood.

When used, secondary units should be designed with the
same level of detail and should match the architectural
style of the primary residence.

Preserving Views

Careful building placement and street orientation can help
protect visual quality for residents throughout the
neighborhood.

SEE FIGURE 1 FOR
[LLISTRATION OF TYPES
OF GARAGE PLACEMENTS




Privacy

Privacy is an important consideration in residential site
planning. Innovative site design techniques should be
used to preserve privacy while promoting social
opportunities in residential neighborhoods. In particular,
windows of homes should be located to minimize visual
intrusion on neighbors’ windows and backyards.
Innovative site design techniques, including landscaping,
should be incorporated where appropriate to provide
privacy to residents.

PLOTTING AND VARIABLE SETBACKS
Plotting is an important site planning consideration for
neighborhoods. The plotting of residences should be done
in a manner that achieves diversity and visual interest to
the neighborhood street scene. Such diversity can be
achieved through varying setbacks, articulated building
massing, de-emphasized garages, and enhanced
elevations.
= Floor plans should be reversed and plotted so that
garages and entries are adjacent to each other to create
an undulating setback.
® Adjacent homes should have different elevations and
color schemes to avoid a repetitious street scene.

Lot Orientation

In order to avoid visual monotony and a repetitious street
scene, rotating block orientations should be used to avoid
lengthy streets.

Corner Lots

Corner lots should present attractive facades to both
adjoining streets through elements such as wraparound
porches, bays, entries, window treatments, and the use of
alternative materials such as brick and stone.

Varied Lot Widths

Making some lots wider and some narrower than the
average can provide different amounts of open space
between structures. It also allows placement of different
shapes and sizes of homes. On narrow lots, a variation of
only 3 or 4 feet can make a perceptible difference.

PEDESTRIAN CONNECTIVITY

Pedestrian pathways providing strong connectivity
among the residential neighborhoods and various
amenities such as commercial, office, and recreational
amenities are encouraged. These pathways can be located
in paseos (greenbelt areas that are separate from the
vehicular circulation system), while other pedestrian
paths can be located adjacent to the community’s
roadways. Together these pathways afford a strong

“___ _Front Setbacks

Should Vary




pedestrian orientation, providing the opportunity for
alternative modes of travel to specific destinations. Two
pedestrian access concepts that should be incorporated
into residential site design are the pedestrian way,
abutting cul-de-sac bulbs, and the view cul-de-sac.

Pedestrian Way

Where other options for pedestrian connectivity are not
plausible, mid-block pedestrian ways can help to provide
pedestrian connectivity throughout and into adjacent
neighborhoods. These short-cuts provide pedestrian
access at mid-block points, thus providing an alternative
route.

Abutting Cul-de-sac Bulbs

Similar to pedestrian ways, abutting cul-de-sac bulbs
provide pedestrian connectivity without allowing for auto
circulation to cut through. When designed in conjunction
with a paseo, these access points provide for pedestrian
connectivity throughout the neighborhoods.

View Cul-de-sacs

Similar to pedestrian ways and abutting cul-de-sac bulbs,
view cul-de-sacs provide pedestrian connectivity without
allowing for auto circulation to cut through. Generally,
the cul-de-sac bulbs stub into open space areas or main
auto thoroughfares. By creating an open-ended bulb, the
cul-de-sacs not only allow for pedestrian connectivity, but
they also provide view corridors into and out of the
neighborhoods, thus creating a more open neighborhood
feel.

Neighborhood Street Design

Neighborhood streets should be site planned to promote
connectivity to adjacent neighborhoods and provide
alternative routes for both vehicular and pedestrian traffic.

Traffic Calming Measures

To encourage a pedestrian friendly environment through
safer streets for pedestrians and enhance the overall visual
quality of neighborhoods, traffic calming measures are
encouraged in the design of the residential
neighborhoods. Such devices may include:

*Chicanes — (also referred to as tapered streets) are a
traffic calming measure used in traditional neighborhood
design. Although the traffic lanes are the same width (the
chicanes only project as far as the on-street parking areas),
the tapered street appears to be narrowing, thus
encouraging vehicles to slow their speeds These
landscape fingers also provide a visible raised waiting
area for pedestrians intending to cross the street. At
intersections with chicanes, pedestrians are more visible

Pedestrian Way

Pedestiian Way provides
mid-block pedestrian path

Abutting Cul-de-sac Bulbs

Driving-only transportation pattern Walkable connected transporation network

Chicanes

Chicanes at
" Intersections




than they would be if they were cutting between parked
cars.

Commercial/ Residential Interface

Site planning is an important consideration when
situations exists and there is an interface between
residential and commercial land uses. Residential units
should rear or side the service side of commercial. On rear
loaded homes, this can be done by paralleling the
commercial and residential alleys or stubbing the
residential alleys perpendicular to the commercial alley.

Residential/ Park Interface

The location of residential neighborhoods to a park is an
important consideration in the overall community design.
Special care must be taken to ensure that this reciprocal
relationship is reflected in the interface between these two
land uses. Special attention should be given to the
physical and visual transition between development areas
and a park. These transition areas should be designed,
landscaped, and graded to blend residential development
and the park together smoothly. Where feasible and as
part of the plan, homes should front a park, thus creating
eyes on the park. Rear Loaded homes are encouraged in
these neighborhoods this allows for the fronts of homes to
face the park, while allowing garage access off an alley.

SPECIAL SITING CONDITIONS

Corner Lots

Homes that are plotted on corner lots should feature
enhanced elevations that provide a similar level of detail
to the corner side elevations as is applied to the front
elevation. Such enhancements may include elements such
as, wrap-around porches or courtyards; principal window
treatments; roof plane breaks; accent colors, materials and
detailing.

Perimeter Edge Conditions
On lots adjacent to perimeter streets, open space, canals
or other public areas, the side and rear elevations that face
such areas should be enunciated and treated to provide
visual interest to the edge condition. Particular
consideration should be given to the treatment of second
stories and roof elements. Enunciation to visible side and
rear elevations along perimeter areas can be achieved
through the use of the following elements:

= Patio covers or second story decks

* Principal window treatments

= Off-set wall planes (two-foot minimum offset)

= Roof plane breaks



Color blocking
= Introduction of accent building materials and colors
* Introduction of accent elements such as clay vents,
out lookers, and decorative grille work consistent
with the front elevation
= Other similar features that provide articulation to the
visible side or rear elevation

Exterior Lighting

The level of on-site lighting as well as lighting fixtures,
should comply with any and all applicable requirements
and policies of the City of Willows code. Energy
conservation, safety and security should be emphasized
when designing any lighting system.

Streetlights contribute to neighborhood character and
security. Unique street lighting fixtures can enhance
identity, provide a pedestrian scale, and promote
continuity of the street scene. Lighting also can enhance
the nighttime visual environment.

Lighting considerations include illumination of roadways,
parking lots, and pedestrian areas, as well as architectural
and landscape lighting for visual enhancement. Lighting
systems should be designed with consideration of visual
quality, architectural compatibility, safety, glare, and
energy conservation. Glare from lighting fixtures should
be controlled through the use of shields, fixture selection
and placement, and fixture orientation.

Mechanical Equipment

Special care should be made so that mechanical treatment
does not detract from the architecture of the primary
residence.

* Mechanical equipment such as air conditioners,
heaters, evaporative coolers, television and radio
antennas, and other such devices should not be
mounted on any roof.

®= Mechanical devices such as exhaust fans, vents and
pipes should be painted to match adjacent roof
surfaces.

* Ground mounted air conditioning units must be
located behind side yard privacy return walls.

* All antenna and satellite dishes visible from any
public or private street, sidewalk, open space or
adjacent lot subject to all federal regulations.

Energy Efficiency
Commitment should be made to meet or exceed statewide
energy-efficiency requirements. It is also encouraged to
offer energy efficient amenities such as:
® Roof-integrated photovoltaic cells (which are
designed to blend seamlessly to maintain the
architectural roofline of the homes.

10




11

= Energy Star appliances (which use a minimal amount
of energy).

= Shade elements (such as extended roof treatments
over porches and outdoor areas) as well as deciduous
trees (these elements can also help to protect the
homes from excess sun entering through primary
windows).

= Low-flow water fixtures.

® Drip landscape watering systems.

= Energy-saving, dual-glazed LoE2 windows.

LANDSCAPE ELEMENTS

Walls & Fences

Walls and fences that are visible from street, open space,
or other public areas should be in accordance with master
developer specifications and meet noise attenuation
requirements where applicable.

The design of fencing should be uniform throughout each
subdivision. Fencing designs, materials, and colors may
vary between subdivisions
= Neighborhood fences should be 6 feet high and be
comprised of cedar, fir, or redwood, or stucco walls.
Wood may be left natural or have a semi-transparent
stain in natural tones of light browns and grays
applied. Chain link fencing is prohibited.
®* Low wood fences and picket fences (between 30
inches and 36 inches in height) are permitted along
front yards and at side yard property lines within the
front yard, or along corner side yards. Fencing within
a designated front yard area should be open and of a
“rail fence” nature. The design and height of these
fences are encouraged to vary within each subdivision
to provide interest and diversity. In the case of the low
fences, white paint or stain is permitted. Fencing 36
inches or lower may be placed immediately behind
the walk.
= Fences are to be located on the rear and side property
lines of residential lots, except at neighborhood
entries and other locations where the community wall
is used. With respect to corner conditions, the fence
will return back to the residential unit at a logical
point related to the specific architecture of the unit.
= Gates, courtyards, and/or arbors placed along the
walk to a unit’s entry are encouraged.

Street Trees

Tree-lined streets are an important design element in a
residential community and are an effective way of
providing a high-quality neighborhood image, while also
providing shade and other functional purposes.



= Street trees should be planted at regular intervals to
provide shade and visual interest

® One street tree should be planted for each 50 feet of
street frontage and single family residential should
have a minimum of two street trees for each 50 feet
of street frontage.

= A variety of tree species should be used to create
distinctive street hierarchy and identities.

® In order to provide maximum shading benefits, large-
canopy trees should be planted.

Energy Conservation

Structures and plantings should be used to help shield
buildings from unwanted summer heat gain, while
allowing winter sun and light. Where feasible, east and
west walls should be shaded with trees and vines.
Deciduous trees should be used to provide summer shade
while admitting winter sun. All plantings should be
designed to maintain solar access for passive and active
solar systems. Where feasible, a landscaped buffer should
be provided between buildings and pavement, so that
reflected heat buildup within buildings is minimized.

Native and drought-tolerant plants should be used in
landscaping, where feasible. Water conservation
principles should be integrated into the landscaping
design of the community, including water-efficient
irrigation systems.

Plant Palette

For the list of plant species allowed in residential
subdivision, refer to the Plant Palette in the Appendix of
this document (The City does not have a list of plants for
use within the city only a master tree list which is used for
off-site landscaping).

Neighborhood Entries

By creating a visual gateway into the neighborhoods,
neighborhood entries create a sense of arrival.
Neighborhood entries should incorporate landscaping and
other design elements that reinforce the traditional
community identity

In order to emphasize key internal community
intersections, special landscape features should be used.
Such features include:

= Enhanced pavement

= Flowering accent trees

= Enhanced landscaped parkways

12




Detached Garage

Detached garages are located toward the
rear of the lot behind the primary
structure. Similar architectural details
as designed on the residence should be applied
to the detached garage.

FIGURE 1

Swing In Garage
These garage placements may be located at the
front, side or rear of a plan. Swing-in garages
greatly reduce the impact of garage door faces on the
streetscape. A minimum of 30’ between the
garage door and the side properly line is
required to accommodate back-up space.

Garage Forward
This garage placement is localed forward
of the home’s front facade. Extra attention
and treatments should be applied when
using this garage location. (decoralive garden
fence, low wall with gates, trellis, or porte-cochere).

Alley Loaded Garage
Alley-lnaded parages are accessed rom a rear
or side alley. Some garages may have operable
doors on both the rear and front facades with
vehicular access available on both sides.

Drive Alsle

Recessed Garage

Recessed garages are located behind
the front elevation/living space.

Split Garage

Split garages are garage doors separated
by living space, thus de-emphasizin ']
the impact of the garages on the streetscene.

Corner Condition
This garage placement allows the oplion
of entering from the side strect, thercby
eliminating the garage and driveway from the
front lace of the house. Side-streel entry
garages can be detached.

RESDENCE

Nelghbothood 5tipal

Reightzaihood Street

Garage Placements






SINGLE FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL
DESIGN GUIDELINES




Table of Contents

INOTE/PUIPOSE: .....cceoiieniiieeeiecetec ettt ree s st e et e s e e s e e s b s asesaas e e e s e s e s e s e ssesass 4 essanasesrsenss e saessanssatessnessasassnanarsesanarsasranrbasns 1
ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN .......c.ootiiiimiiiiiiiisiissssessss s essssss s saassas s e s ssassessessssessssassssssssssssesssssessansssasssssssaasanss 1
Articulated Building IMIASSIIE ...........oooi o se sttt et e sa e res e st s s es s e s et easassss et e ssessessesessnsestersantanss 1
BUilding FACAES .........oooinieie ettt ettt e et e s sa e s e b e st e e s e e e st e ebesba s s aseeasssssaa s seansenben s ssana s e saserasrsnssnnsanes 1
Building Materials anad ColOr.......... .ottt e st e b ae et eses et et sees s e st e s e s as st ensesssssanesaaensenaenbasbansases 2
ROOTS ... e S T GO S e T B e G SR TR Ve e oWs s TV Tsab e e da e SR dnni 2
ROOT Form and SIOpe.....................sssssomsmsinssass it sss s iams casiisassissmsssinisismasssamisieistsssisiivisi bbbt smssbaiivssssiorss 2
MALETRALS ... s sns s s v S ASS S PE PR HSSFT So sSSPV o S B PR SRS ST S PR S SR 2
DETAIL ELEMENTS ...ttt et e st e ste st e s e sae e se e s e e sm e e e e s ae e e e se s e e s e e st et e s e e nassnesnsesbasnsesesnsestesaesness 2
Detail Elements INCIUAE:.............cooouiiiiiiieiiiiieiie ettt st aesan et e s e esaessanaeseese e ssassnnsassenssessssaesnensssasnnesassassesasnens 3
GARAGES & DRIVEWAYS ...ttt crtesteasssaess e s s s ssassseseas s nessessssensssesassasssssessssasssessensssnasssessssassansesseseses 3
Maximum Width of DEVEWAY ..ottt sis it ae s st aaess e ae s s saesaesaasaassnaeraassan emsensessasenasasesnesnernens 3
GAPAZES........ooeeree e S R R E O AV S U T PO STV USSR 3 S0 VU0 50 I S TR s SN daaH SRSV S aueR RS S s bR a S e 3
De-emphasis of Garages...... uuimsmsiivinsmsimimmmemmiiiisiiei it b b i i s s e T e s e G A 4
GArage DIESIGIL............o.o oo oimsusismsimssnssssesinssesnisedsmss s sns s obninsbassmsssessias s asies oRe s meds v AR A AP AT SR A TS 4
Garage PIAcement ............... oo ssmsssiosserssosssi s seriassn e me ces sy i ssssses i b S s RS S 3R HAS TR ET 4
B CAT GATAZES ...ttt e eraeetae et e es s e et s sasestenseasen s e s easasessaensaearseaneassaeansaneanesaens ententesaenseerneersaesasensesenssererasenes 4
ACCESSORY STRUCGTURES .......coooitiiiiascreireesmesseseestess s e saseasesseessssassassssesssssessesstsssestessessessssssaesssssseesssessessessssasssassas 5
Secondary UmitS................... o5 s i st s e i o e iy e e e re o T S v e RS ved v rav oo v san s sss 5
Preservil VIBWS ... o 80 SR80V S8 S0 A 4303 ARV S5 AN B SN ORGSR o s 5
PHAVACY ... sne s R VR N A S S e eVt 5
PLOTTING AND VARIABLE SETBACKS ... ccuauusssssossusonsissssonsonssss e ooosssssssssasisseaiosisosss bississsasssaonssssasasiosssassniva 5
I 10 ) T T 1o (1) WO OSSP 5
L 001 ) o (T3 o 1 OSSOSO RSOOSR 5
Varied Lot WIEAERS ..o sa e sas st s s e s e s e e s e seen e b as e snesraeseanessaessasansnesnanassannenen 5
PEDESTRIAN CONNECTIVIT Yiiuauimisnnsaiinsasisnasovmamoise i msa s s onrioisevinsssiastsiasadsassanon sissasanspesspamssasss 6
Pedestrianm Way............couoon o s susssssssmsesssssisussisetssiosmaissssisms ey son s Ao o0s ok o e e e s wak s Ve 6
Abutting Cul-de-sac BuUlbs ............c.oo ettt e e s se s e b e s et e s s e s e e e an e er s n e enberberes 6
VIEW CUl-0E-SACS sunisisuinuoimusisisisvsssnmssmiiassassssons s iesssasssiiiasiss e ss o8 asiss ias svivisssssssssdinassoss s s siosaosasst siussas i sosasabavsnsibsmsinits 6
Neighborhood SEreet DESIGI........ ...t s e et b e b e s e e s b e s b e ba s b e e b e s ss e s s beeseesrasraenaasssraasts 6
Traffic Calming MEASUIES............cccooiiiiiiiieiee e siee st ss s sbaeesa s estas st e st asst e sasaa e essasaansaesnesnteshasesesansesassassassassassaes 6
Commercial/ Residential INrfACe .............ccooiiioiiiiiiicieccec ettt e ss e s ras e sn g s s assanaesasaseressas 7
Residential/ Park INTErface.............cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiniinistesasssesniesrasessessesssessssassansanssssensesanssessasesnsansesssssnsesssrasansesssnsanes 7
SPECIAL SITING CONDITIONS..... jisusousonsesisusiisassssosssssanssssssiasssacssss oasssasssssiestsosbansssissmaisiessssssiss i sissnssayevssssvresivisivosen 7



Perimeter Edge Conditions ..........sisaesusinmssimmmmisiimsissi o i st e is s s Sissa s saisissss 7

COLOT BIOCKIIMG .........o.oceevireeieriiisnsnsssnsiiossssassnsssssassasvessnsssassissimeiassdoiise dauswass st vos s s o n v e oo Ao oo 8
Mechanical EQUIPIIENL................coooiiiiiiiiiiit ettt rretssesstesesasesesnesansa st e s sneseesassaessessesasssssaranasssressenanns 8
EDergy EffICIEIICY ...ttt siisicesest et sssrae st aesaasst et s aesn e ss e s e saeasasasen e s snsssasassse e saeseesassasstesassaassnsesssasessansssanes 8
Walls & FENCES ......coooremerrerernenen issiassiisinississsisaiitevse it tosos s e b ovs S aeR s oo oo A S i T AV vas v s TR S s s sesoavemvai oo 8
SHCL TTES ... b S S S S TSRO OB TS s S v eTo sak s s s iedso ad esabes 9
Energy ConServAtiON «.rivusiissmssiisssmoinsiisiastinsssissasins bissiommssississiesssssassismmisussvsissssamssvoisessvssolsmiissivssssbsvidommiiesivsiioisn 9
PIADt PALRLe............oo.ooouomeivsssismsssmenssss s vonssisssnss betinsvass suais ous snssi smssasiobsusuesn s nmiiassbuvemsoinisisasies svmsd s voreama oot oo vos aiids 9



SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL
DESIGN GUIDELINES

Note/Purpose:

These guidelines primarily address zoning districts to include R-1 and R-2 which both
allow for single family dwellings. Parcels within the General Plan land use
designations of Estate Residential and Low Density Residential are areas subject to
these guidelines.

The overall layout of neighborhoods and subdivisions in the City of Willows is
intended to promote a varied yet cohesive
residential environment with a strong focus upon
the pedestrian and human-scale streetscapes.

| Throughout the neighborhoods, the intermixing of
residential densities, lot sizes, and product types is encouraged. The local street network
should be designed to provide connectivity within and
between individual neighborhoods and provide choices . g "
between routes. Variety in street and residential block %\ -

layouts is encouraged. Design Review is intended to E/ P

Craftsman
Ranch Style

promote high-quality design and well-built and
maintained buildings, landscaping and public amenities
in order to further the relationship between the appearance of buildings and structures,

property values and the taxable value of property in the city.

Colonial

Diversity in housing not only allows builders to provide a greater spread of housing choice and affordability for
residents, but also allows for a varied yet cohesive residential environment. Diversity in housing types also helps to
create variety in neighborhood design, with a strong focus upon the pedestrian and human-scale streetscapes.

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN

Regardless of its architectural style, the architecture of a house is comprised of three basic
components; the building facades, roofs, and detail elements. Together, when these
components are designed appropriately, a cohesive yet diverse residential neighborhood
environment will be realized.

Modern

Articulated Building Massing
Boxy two-story building forms that overwhelm the street scene are discouraged. Rather the building mass should be broken
down into smaller elements, where feasible, to provide visual interest and articulation to the neighborhood street scene.

Building Facades
Variety in building forms provide diversity and visual interest to the neighborhood street scene and can be used to create a
desirable human scale.

The following elements should be incorporated into the design of residential structures:
building wall planes, particularly on the front elevation, should be staggered to create
interest along the street scene; projections and recesses should be used to provide shadow
and depth; combinations of one and two-story forms should be used to help to create
) variety in setback and overall building form.




Building Materials and Color
* Building materials (including accent materials, roof materials, and paint colors) are important elements to the visual
quality of homes and should be consistent with the architectural style of the residence.
= All surface treatments or materials should be designed to appear as an integral part of the design, and not merely applied.
All materials should wrap columns, porches, or balconies in their entirety.

----- * Material changes should occur at inside corners or other meaningful location.

sesus wemon swexrwn waoo Materials applied to any elevation should turn the outside corner of the building a

- - --- minimum of 3’ before terminating.
- - --- ' Thfe c.:olor pale':tte should be selected with the desigr'l obje.ctives.of a\{oiding monotony,
e I e providing a variety of colorful schemes, and promoting visual diversity.
= Selected finish materials should be of durable material and of high quality.
oot aeeas womaey - sovwar osmm @ No homes adjacent to each other or immediately across the street from each other

should have the same color scheme or same body color.

ROOFS

Roof Form and Slope
Similar to building materials and color, roof form and slope are also important design elements in creating a well-developed
street scene.
= Roof treatments should be consistent with the architectural style of the dwelling. w %A
= Variety of roof design and treatment is encouraged to provide visual interest to the
neighborhood roofscape throughout the development, including the use of gable, cross-

gable, hip, or a combination of these roof forms. DORMERS?
= Likewise, variety in roof lines is encouraged to avoid a common roof line along @ @ @
neighborhood streets. Rooflines of adjoining residences should vary ridge heights, roof
forms, and direction of gables. B .
= Repetitious gable ends framed side to side on rear elevations are not permitted along @ % ‘%}

perimeter edges of residential neighborhoods, when visible from a public space or
s tree t, Hal*thp Ecof Manser] Kool Duymar Kotd

= Broken roof pitches extending over porches, patios or other similar features are encouraged where appropriate to the
architectural style.

Materials
In order to avoid a monotonous roofscape appearance, a variety of roof materials is encouraged throughout the development.
® Roof materials should be compatible with the architectural style of the residence and .
should have a matte finish to minimize glare.
* Permitted Roof Materials: Clay or Concrete “S” Tiles; Clay or Concrete Flat Tiles;
Clay or Concrete Shakes; Slate; Low profile S-tiles; Architectural Grade Composition.
= Prohibited Material: Wood Shake; Rolled roofing material.
= Fascia: may be either stucco, wood, or tile. If wood is used, it should be stained or
painted. ! -
= Skylights are permitted but should be designed as an integral part of the roof. White “bubble” skylights are not permitted.
Skylight framing material should be bronze anodized or colored to match the adjacent roof materials.

DETAIL ELEMENTS

*Entries: The entry of a residential dwelling should be articulated as a focal point of the building’s
front elevation. Roof elements, columns, porticos, recesses or projections, window or other
architectural features should be used to accentuate the entryway.

= Courtyards provide a transition from the public space of the street to the entrance of the dwelling.
, Courtyard walls, when provided, should be finished to match the house. Stone, ceramic tiles, steps,
" recesses, cut-outs, or wrought iron accents appropriate to the architectural style of the residence are
Y encouraged.




= Porches: Porches not only provide pedestrian scale elements to the building massing but also allow for an area for
residents to enjoy the outdoor climate and a place converse with neighbors. When provided, porches should be designed
as an integral component of the building’s architecture, with dimensions significant to create a usable outdoor space.
Porches should have railings and be fully covered in one of the following ways; roof element and tile matching the

residence; trellis structure, second floor balcony or overhang.

®* Columns & Archways: The use of columns and archways adds y g

articulation to the character of the residence and is encouraged where
appropriate to the architectural style. Columns and archways should be
scaled appropriately to provide a sense of strength and support
compatible with the architectural style of the home.

® Trellis & Arbors: Trellises and arbors, when used, should be designed
to maintain their appearance considering the climatic conditions of the

area.

= Patio covers and balconies: The
use of rear patio covers and
second story balconies provide an

® Principal Window Treatment: At least one principal window is required on
front elevations. Principal windows are defined as having one of the following
characteristics; Recessed window or a pop-out surround; A bay window with
projection and detailing appropriate to the architectural style of the residence;
A enhanced sill with corresponding roof element and corbels; An overhead
trellis element or; Decorative iron window grille projecting forward of the wall
plane.
Rear and side elevations that are visible from perimeter conditions should have at
least one principal window as defined above. The use of shutters is an acceptable

excellent opportunity for the articulation of rear facades, particularly along visible
perimeter conditions (i.e., public spaces or streets). Second story balconies provide
| further visual interest to the street scene by increasing the perceived front setback
of the second story. Patio covers and balconies should be designed as an integral
component of the architecture. Columns used in conjunction with the patio covers
and balconies should convey a sense of strength and support.

principal window treatment on visible rear elevations when used in conjunction with an enhanced sill or other form of
articulation. All other windows on the front elevations and visible side and rear elevations should feature trim surrounds,
headers or sills. The minimum reveal for trim elements is 1”. The style of windows should be compatible with the

architectural style of the residence.

Detail Elements Include:

surface to which they are attached.

GARAGES & DRIVEWAYS
Maximum Width of Driveway

Landscape planter strips is encouraged.

Garages

Garages should be set back a minimum of 5 feet from the primary front fagade of the
residence. Garages are also encouraged to be located further back toward the rear yard
area of a lot to accommodate a more traditional design. Garages should be set back

In order to limit the unappealing amount of
hardscape in front of a home, the use of contrasting materials, Tapered driveway, or

Shutters; exposed rafter ends or cross beams. Decorative grill work, decorative
stucco or clay pipe vents, decorative ceramic tile/and or other similar features.
Exposed gutters and downspouts should be colored to match or complement the




sufficiently enough so that vehicles parked on driveways do not extend or block the sidewalk or public right-of-way. The
minimum recommended distance from the face of the garage to the front property line is 20 feet.

De-emphasis of Garages

Residential garages should be positioned to de-emphasize their visual impact on
the street. This will allow the active, visually interesting features of the house,
to dominate the streetscape. Garages may be sited in several ways; Recessed
Garage, Corner Lot with Side-street Entry Garage, Forward Swing-In Garage,
Split Garage, Alley-Loaded Garage, Detached Garages, Garage Forward.

. Garage Design
Attached or detached garages should be designed to de-emphasize their architectural prominence. To achieve this desired
effect, these structures should incorporate the following;
® Garage doors should vary with respect to windows and/or color as appropriate to individual architectural styles of the
house.
* On conventional home plotting, in effort to buffer the view impact of garages and garage doors from the sidewalk or
street, optional treatments such as a trellis or porte-cochere are encouraged. A  jig® ; ‘
recessed garage plan with a porte-cochere can create an additional partially
covered parking space, and also can serve as an outdoor private space.
® Rear loaded homes are also encouraged. The garages of these homes
generally take access from drive aisles and court streets, allowing more
architecture to front onto the neighborhood streets and open spaces. When
plotting rear loaded units, since the garage side of the homes will only be
visible to the drive aisles, it is not necessary to recess the garage doors.

Garage Placement

Residential garages should be positioned to de-emphasize their visual !
impact on the street. This will allow the visually interesting features of SEE FIGURE 1 FOR

the house to dominate the streetscape. All garage doors should be ILLISTRATION OF TYPES
recessed a minimum of 6 inches behind the garage wall plane. Tandem OF GARAGE PLACEMENTS

parking in garages may be used to minimize the number or width
of garage doors.

3 Car Garages

When a 3-car front-facing garage is used, in addition to standard garage requirements,
at least one of the following front-facing plan elements is required: A minimum 6
foot deep by 10 foot wide porch on the front elevation; an offset at single door of at
least 2 feet from the double door; a double and single garage door separated by at least
1 foot of wall mass between doors and the garages are located at least 5 feet behind
the front fagade of the dwelling’s living space.

*Optional treatments such as a trellis or porte-cochere that occur forward of the
garage can be used to buffer the view impact of garages and garage doors from
the sidewalk or street. For example, a recessed garage plan with a porte-cochere can create an additional, partially
covered, parking space and also can serve as an outdoor private space.




ACCESSORY STRUCTURES

Guest houses, detached garages, greenhouses, and other similar accessory
structures should be compatible in design, materials, and color as the main
residence. Such structures should be visually related to the main residence
through the use of garden walls, or other landscape elements.

Secondary Units
Secondary units (also referred to as ancillary or granny units) help to increase
affordability and diversity throughout a neighborhood.

When used, secondary units should be designed with the same level of detail and should match the architectural style of the
primary residence.

Preserving Views
Careful building placement and street orientation can help protect visual quality for residents throughout the neighborhood.

Privacy

. Privacy is an important consideration in residential site planning.
Innovative site design techniques should be used to preserve privacy while
B promoting social opportunities in residential neighborhoods. In
B particular, windows of homes should be located to minimize visual
intrusion on neighbors’ windows and backyards. Innovative site design
techniques, including landscaping, should be incorporated where

PLOTTING AND VARIABLE SETBACKS
Plotting is an important site planning consideration for
neighborhoods. The plotting of residences should be done in a
manner that achicves diversity and visual interest to the
neighborhood street scene. Such diversity can be achieved through
varying setbacks, articulated building massing, de-emphasized
garages, and enhanced elevations.
* Floor plans should be reversed and plotted so that garages and
entries are adjacent to each other to create an undulating setback.
* Adjacent homes should have different elevations and color
schemes to avoid a repetitious street scene.

Variable Setbacks

. _Fiont Setbacks
Should Vary

¥

Neighbothood Street

Lot Orientation
In order to avoid visual monotony and a repetitious street scene, rotating
block orientations should be used to avoid lengthy streets.

Corner Lots

Corner lots should present attractive facades to both adjoining streets through
elements such as wraparound porches, bays, entries, window treatments, and
the use of alternative materials such as brick and stone.

Varied Lot Widths

Making some lots wider and some narrower than the average can provide
different amounts of open space between structures. It also allows placement of different shapes and sizes of homes. On
narrow lots, a variation of only 3 or 4 feet can make a perceptible difference.




for +pedestrian connectivity are not plausible, mid-block pedestrian
ways can help to provide pedestrian connectivity throughout and into
adjacent neighborhoods. These short-cuts provide pedestrian access at
mid-block points, thus providing an alternative route.

Abutting Cul-de-sac Bulbs

PEDESTRIAN CONNECTIVITY

Pedestrian pathways providing strong connectivity among the residential
neighborhoods and various amenities such as commercial, office, and
recreational amenities are encouraged. These pathways can be located in
paseos (greenbelt areas that are separate from the vehicular circulation
system), while other pedestrian paths can be located adjacent to the
community’s roadways. Together these pathways afford a strong
pedestrian orientation, providing the opportunity for alternative modes of
travel to specific destinations. Two pedestrian access concepts that should
be incorporated into residential site design are the pedestrian way, abutting
cul-de-sac bulbs, and the view cul-de-sac.

Pedestrian Way

Pedestrian Way
Where other options

Pedesliian Way piovides
mid-block pedeslian paih

Abutting Cul-de-sac

Bulbs

Similar to pedestrian ways, abutting cul-de-sac bulbs provide pedestrian
connectivity without allowing for auto circulation to cut through. When
designed in conjunction with a paseo, these access points provide for
pedestrian connectivity throughout the neighborhoods.

View Cul-de-sacs

Similar to pedestrian ways and abutting cul-de-sac bulbs, view cul-de-sacs
provide pedestrian connectivity without allowing for auto circulation to cut
through. Generally, the cul-de-sac bulbs stub into open space areas or main
auto thoroughfares. By creating an open-ended bulb, the cul-de-sacs not only
allow for pedestrian connectivity, but they also provide view corridors into

and out of the neighborhoods, thus creating a more open neighborhood feel.

k T e Neighborhood Street Design

Neighborhood streets should be site planned to promote
connectivity to adjacent neighborhoods and provide
alternative routes for both vehicular and pedestrian traffic.

Traffic Calming Measures

To encourage a pedestrian friendly environment through safer
streets for pedestrians and enhance the overall visual quality
of neighborhoods, traffic calming measures are encouraged in

Driving-only transportation pattern Walkable connected transporation network

the design of the residential neighborhoods. Such devices may
include:

*Chicanes — (also referred to as tapered streets) are a traffic calming measure used in traditional neighborhood design.
Although the traffic lanes are the same width (the chicanes only project as far as the on-street parking areas), the tapered
street appears to be narrowing, thus encouraging vehicles to slow their speeds These landscape fingers also provide a visible



raised waiting area for pedestrians intending to cross the street. At intersections with
chicanes, pedestrians are more visible than they would be if they were cutting
between parked cars.

Chicanes

Commercial/ Residential Interface

Site planning is an important consideration when situations exists and there is an
interface between residential and commercial land uses. Residential units should rear
or side the service side of
commercial. On rear loaded
homes, this can be done by
paralleling the commercial
and residential alleys or stubbing the residential alleys perpendicular
to the commercial alley.

Chicanes at
Intersections

Residential/ Park Interface
The location of residential neighborhoods to a park is an important
consideration in the overall community design. Special care must be
taken to ensure that this reciprocal relationship is reflected in the
interface between these two land uses. Special attention should be
¢ given to the physical and visual transition between development areas
and a park. These transition areas should be designed, landscaped,
and graded to blend residential development and the park together
smoothly. Where feasible and as part of the plan, homes should front
a park, thus creating eyes on the park. Rear Loaded homes are
encouraged in these neighborhoods this allows for the fronts of homes
to face the park, while allowing garage access off an alley.

SPECIAL SITING CONDITIONS

Corner Lots

Homes that are plotted on corner lots should feature enhanced
elevations that provide a similar level of detail to the corner side
clevations as is applied to the front elevation. Such
enhancements may include elements such as, wrap-around
porches or courtyards; principal window treatments; roof plane
breaks; accent colors, materials and detailing.

Perimeter Edge Conditions
On lots adjacent to perimeter streets, open space, canals or other
public areas, the side and rear elevations that face such areas
should be enunciated and treated to provide visual interest to the
edge condition. Particular consideration should be given to the treatment of second stories and roof elements. Enunciation
to visible side and rear elevations along perimeter areas can be achieved through the use of the following elements:

= Patio covers or second story decks

®* Principal window treatments

= Off-set wall planes (two-foot minimum offset)

* Roof plane breaks




Color blocking
* Introduction of accent building materials and colors
* Introduction of accent elements such as clay vents, out
lookers, and decorative grille work consistent with the
front elevation
= Other similar features that provide articulation to the
visible side or rear elevation

Exterior Lighting

The level of on-site lighting as well as lighting fixtures, : -
should comply with any and all applicable requirements and policies of the City of Willows code. Energy conservation,
safety and security should be emphasized when designing any lighting system.

Streetlights contribute to neighborhood character and security. Unique street lighting fixtures can enhance identity, provide
a pedestrian scale, and promote continuity of the street scene. Lighting also can enhance the nighttime visual environment.
Lighting considerations include illumination of roadways, parking lots, and pedestrian areas, as well as architectural and
landscape lighting for visual enhancement. Lighting systems should be designed with consideration of visual quality,
architectural compatibility, safety, glare, and energy conservation. Glare from lighting fixtures should be controlled through
the use of shields, fixture selection and placement, and fixture orientation.

Mechanical Equipment
Special care should be made so that mechanical treatment does not detract from the architecture of the primary residence.
* Mechanical equipment such as air conditioners, heaters, evaporative coolers, television and radio antennas, and other
such devices should not be mounted on any roof.
* Mechanical devices such as exhaust fans, vents and pipes should be painted to match adjacent roof surfaces.
* Ground mounted air conditioning units must be located behind side yard privacy return walls.
® All antenna and satellite dishes visible from any public or private street, sidewalk, open space or adjacent lot subject to
all federal regulations.

Energy Efficiency
Commitment should be made to meet or exceed statewide energy-efficiency requirements. It is also encouraged to offer
energy efficient amenities such as:
* Roof-integrated photovoltaic cells (which are designed to blend seamlessly to maintain the architectural roofline of the
homes.
* Energy Star appliances (which use a minimal amount of energy).
* Shade elements (such as extended roof treatments over porches and outdoor areas) as well as deciduous trees (these
elements can also help to protect the homes from excess sun entering through primary windows).
= Low-flow water fixtures.
® Drip landscape watering systems.
= Energy-saving, dual-glazed LoE2 windows.

LANDSCAPE ELEMENTS

Walls & Fences
Walls and fences that are visible from street, open space, or other public areas should be in accordance with master developer
specifications and meet noise attenuation requirements where applicable.



The design of fencing should be uniform throughout each subdivision. Fencing

designs, materials, and colors may vary between subdivisions

*Neighborhood fences should be 6 feet high and be comprised of cedar, fir, or

redwood, or stucco walls. Wood may be left natural or have a semi-transparent stain

in natural tones of light browns and grays applied. Chain link fencing is prohibited.

*Low wood fences and picket fences (between 30 inches and 36 inches in height) are

permitted along front yards and at side yard property lines within the front yard, or

along corner side yards. Fencing within a designated front yard area should be open

: and of a “rail fence” nature. The design and height of these fences are encouraged
to vary within each subdivision to provide interest and diversity. In the case of the low fences, white paint or stain is
permitted. Fencing 36 inches or lower may be placed immediately behind the walk.

= Fences are to be located on the rear and side property lines of residential lots, except at neighborhood entries and other
locations where the community wall is used. With respect to corner conditions, the fence will return back to the
residential unit at a logical point related to the specific architecture of the unit.

= (ates, courtyards, and/or arbors placed along the walk to a unit’s entry are encouraged.

Street Trees
Tree-lined streets are an important design element in a residential community
and are an effective way of providing a high-quality neighborhood image,
while also providing shade and other functional purposes.

= Street trees should be planted at regular intervals to provide shade and

visual interest

*One street tree should be
* planted for each 50 feet of
{ street frontage and single
family residential should have
. a minimum of two street trees for each 50 feet of street frontage.
= A variety of tree species should be used to create distinctive street hierarchy
and identities.
=In order to provide maximum shading benefits, large-canopy trees should
be planted.

Energy Conservation

Structures and plantings should be used to help shield buildings from unwanted summer heat gain, while allowing winter
sun and light. Where feasible, east and west walls should be shaded with trees and vines. Deciduous trees should be used
to provide summer shade while admitting winter sun. All plantings should be designed to maintain solar access for passive
and active solar systems. Where feasible, a landscaped buffer should be provided between buildings and pavement, so that
reflected heat buildup within buildings is minimized.

Native and drought-tolerant plants should be used in landscaping, where feasible. Water conservation principles should be
integrated into the landscaping design of the community, including water-efficient irrigation systems.

, Plant Palette

For the list of plant species allowed in residential subdivision, refer to the Plant
Palette in the Appendix of this document (The City does not have a list of plants for
use within the city only a master tree list which is used for off-site landscaping).




Neighborhood
Entries

By creating a visual
gateway into the
neighborhoods, neighborhood entries create a sense of arrival.
Neighborhood entries should incorporate landscaping and other
design elements that reinforce the traditional community
identity

In order to emphasize key internal community intersections,
special landscape features should be used. Such features
include:

® Enhanced pavement

= Flowering accent trees

® Enhanced landscaped parkways

10



11



SJUILLADE] ] dderen)

1005 potoquBan

o) uo saey Joap odesed fo Pedur oy oonpos {peord

|#js pooyioquBlaN

pAYdLISP Aq ued saFered
AU 100038-0PIG 0$N0Y oY) Jo oaej U]
ay woly Lessanp pue sfered oy Jurjeumurpe
Agaua 190118 dpIs o wory Furaous Jo
uondo sy smoj|e Juewaejd o8esed sy

UORIpU0) ISUI0))

"auede)aa1)s ) uo seBered s jo edum oy
Burziseydwo-op sy ‘aseds Suiar £q
pareredas sioop 2dered aie sadered 11dg

a3eres) J1jdg

-aoeds urar] /uoneAsys Ju0I] 13
punag poteso] se soldesel pussonoy

dderer) possadoy

Ba_

ayeds dnpeq aepounuok o] parmbar
s1 oul) Apodoud opis vyl pue joop v8esed
31 USDMIDq (¢ Jo wmunmu y “adedsizans

BSIY 8A)IQ

‘(213102-9110d 10 ‘sTy7RM ‘s91ed ITM TTem MOT ‘aouay
unpaed oaneronop) uonedo sdered snp Sursn
usym poatjdde o pynoys sjuswresny pue
VORI BIIXT "APeIR] JUOIT § awoy o) Jo
pyesmio) pereno] st Juswodeld odesed sy,

pIemiIoj oderer)

"SAPIS 10 UO 2QeIRAR SSIDIR JRINONJDA
Y1M sapedey JU0L) pue Jesl 31 Y104 UO S100p
ajqerado aaey {ewr sofered mmog ~{aqqe apr1s 10
1) B W0l | passanae ose sodesed popeoj-La| v

33erer) popeo] A9y

sodeied w-Bumg -uerd e jo rean 10 opIs ‘Juoyy
M1 e pRDO] 0q AP sfuawoovid adered asoy ]

ddeIen) U SUIMG

1 29NDOIA

-afered payperop sp 0
pordde og pynoys vouapisos oYy wo pouisop se
S[TeI9P [LIMIDNIDI TB[IUING "2INIDNIIS
Lrewrnd oy putyeq 101 93 Jo 1891
a1]) pIeMO] paiedo] a1k sedeied payaeiac]

93e1en) payoed(g






